
PacMtn Workforce Development Council 
Board Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, March 22, 2018 ▪ 1:30 - 4:00 pm 
St. Martin’s University  
Norman Worthington Conference Center 
5300 Pacific Ave SE ▪ Lacey, WA 98503 
Dial: 888-214-7806 Passcode: 443898  
Pacmtn.adobeconnect.com/wdc  

I. Welcome & Leadership Reports (Board Chair) 
• Establish Quorum & Review Today’s Agenda
• Board Chair Report
• Review of Upcoming Consortium Meeting (Attachment #1)
• CEO Report (Attachment #2)

II. Action: Consent Agenda
The Consent Agenda is a SINGLE item for Board consideration that encompasses items the Board would typically approve with little 
comment. Procedural items such as approval of Minutes, or other legal or housekeeping items are appropriate for a Consent Agenda. There 
can be explanation of items, but there is no discussion of the Consent Agenda. If discussion is warranted or requested ANY item can be 
immediately removed and placed on the regular Agenda for full board discussion. 

• Approval of the November 2017 and December 2017 Board Minutes (Attachment #3)
• Quarterly Financial Statements (Attachment #4)
• PY16 990 Tax Statement (Attachment #5)

III. Committee & Task Force Updates (Task Force Leads)
• One Stop Committee – Cheryl Heywood
• Action: Motion to Approve New Targeted Populations Charter (Attachment #6) –

Kairie Pierce

IV. Action Items & Strategic Discussions (Staff Leads)
• Review January 2017 Board Retreat Notes (Attachment #7)

• Discussion of Possible Next Steps

V. Board Learning Feature Topic  (Michael Cade) 
• Off Planet Research and Lab Tour

• PacMtn welcomes Dr. Roy Heynderickx, President of St. Martin’s University
and Principles at Off Planet Research

VI. Good of the Order & Announcements

11



Upcoming Meetings 
Date Location 

WDC Board Budget Workshop 
Thursday, May 24, 2018 

9:00 – 11:00 am 

PacMtn Offices 

Thursday, June 28, 2018* TBD 
WDC Orientation Refresher 

Thursday, July 26, 2018* 
TBD 

Regular WDC Meeting 
Thursday, September 27, 2018* 

TBD 

Regular WDC Meeting 
Thursday, November 29, 2018* 

TBD 

WDC Year End Celebration 
Thursday, December 27, 2018* 

TBD 

The WDC Board takes action at Regular Meetings.  Other gatherings are topic specific and informal.  
*Dates are tentative. Please contact PacMtn offices at 360-704-3568 for confirmation of meeting dates, times
and location.

2016 – 2018 WDC Members 
Name Business/Organization Representation 

1. Duane Evans Port Blakely  U.S. Forestry Business: Wood Products 
Manufacturing 

2. Jim Larson Morningside CBO/Serves Disabled 
Populations 

3. Peter Lahmann NW Laborers Employment Training 
Trust 

Labor – Apprenticeship 

4. Alissa Shay Port of Gray s Harbor Business: Logistics Cross 
Sector 

5. Dru Garson Greater Gray s Harbor Business: Economic 
Development 

6. Derek Epps Seattle Shellfish Business: 
Aquaculture/Food 
Production 

7 . Jacqueline Earley Sierra Pacific Business: Wood Products 
Manufacturing 

8. Steve Rogers Pacific County  Historical Society & 
Museum 

Business: Tourism & 
Recreation 

9. Jim Say ce Pacific County  EDC Business: Economic 
Development 

10. Michael Cade Thurston County EDC Business: Economic 
Development 

11. David Schaffert Thurston County Chamber Business: Private Sector 
Enterprise 

12. Anne Goranson Employ ment Security Dept. Wagner-Pey ser 
Employ ment Service 

13. Kairie Pierce WA State Labor Council Labor Organization 
14. Chery l Hey wood Timberland Regional Library CBO/Serves All 

Populations 

22



15. Dr. Jim Minkler Gray s Harbor College Post-Secondary Higher 
Education 

16. Mike Hickman Educational School District #113 K-12 Education
17. Bob Guenther Thurston, Lewis, Mason Counties 

Labor Council 
Organized Labor 

18. Paul Vertrees DSHS/DVR Vocational Rehab 
19. Jason Reed DSHS/Community  Serv ices TANF-DSHS 
20. Dawn Murphy South Puget Sound Community  College Basic Education 

Acquisition (BedA): 
Regional 

21 . Bob Hitt Toad Hall Cranberry  Farms Business: Food 
Production 

22. Winfried Danke CHOICE Regional Health Network Business: Life Sciences 
23. Bill Sullivan (Nominee) Consultant  Business: Education  and 

Technology Solutions 
Consultant 

24. Diana Murphy  (Nominee) Regional Manager Business: Staffing 
25. Vacant Business: Lewis County  
26. Vacant Business: Mason County  

33



PacMtn Workforce Development Council 
Elected Official Consortium Meeting Agenda 
Friday, March 30, 2017 ▪ 1:00 - 3:00 pm 
Online: pacmtn.adobeconnect.com/consortium 
888-537-7715 ▪ Passcode: 60526531# 

I. Convene: Welcome – Commissioner Drexler 
A. Self-Introductions  
B. Establish Quorum 
C. Review of Today’s Agenda 
D. WDC Consortium Chair Comments 
E. WDC Board Chair Report 
F. CEO Report 

II. Consent Agenda- Motion to Approve
The Consent Agenda is a SINGLE item for Board consideration that encompasses items the Board would typically approve 

with little comment. Procedural items such as approval of Minutes, or other legal or housekeeping items are appropriate 

for a Consent Agenda. There can be explanation of items, but there is no discussion of the Consent Agenda. If discussion is

warranted or requested ANY item can be immediately removed and placed on the regular Agenda for full Board 

discussion.

A. Approval of November 2017 Consortium Minutes (Attachment #1)

III. Action Items
A. Motion to Approve: Appointment of New Board Member Nominees (Attachment #2)

• Bill Sullivan, Lewis County – Private Business: Education and Technology
Solutions Consultant

• Diana Murphy, Grays Harbor – Private Business: Staffing
B. Motion to Approve: Continuation of Board Membership Terms ending June 30, 2021 

• Anne Goranson (Attachment #3)
• Dawn Murphy (Attachment #4)
• Paul Vertrees (Attachment #5)
• Dru Garson (Attachment #6)
• Jason Reed (Attachment #7)

IV. Discussion and Informational Reports
A. Board Seat Discussion

V. Discussion & Deliberation: Good of the Order & Public Comment 

Attachment #1

44



Upcoming Meetings 

2017 – 2018 Consortium Members 

Date Location 
July 27, 2018 TBD 

November 30, 2018 TBD 
WDC Year End Celebration 

Thursday, December 27, 2018 
TBD 

Name Representing County 
Commissioner Terri Drexler 
Consortium Chair 

Mason 

Commissioner Randy Ross Grays Harbor 
Commissioner John Hutchings 
Alternate: Commissioner Edwards 

Thurston 

Commissioner Lisa Olsen 
Alternate: Commissioner Wolfe 

Pacific 

Commissioner Gary Stamper 
Alternate: Commissioner Fund 

Lewis 

55



TYPE THE SIDEBAR CONTENT. A SIDEBAR IS A STANDALONE SUPPLEMENT TO 
THE MAIN DOCUMENT. IT IS OFTEN ALIGN 

ED ON THE LEFT OR RIGHT OF THE PAGE, OR LOCAT 

CEO HIGHLIGHTS 
March 2018 

Thank you Note for Kind and Professional Staff…”Recently, I move to Tumwater from Tacoma.  I am in 
process of looking for employment closer to my new location.  I found WorkSource Thurston County online and 
drove there for the first time yesterday. Because of the professional and kind manner in which I was assisted by 
the staff at WorkSource, I asked for their supervisor's contact information. When you are a mature unemployed 
woman who is pretty much overlooked in the job market in general, it was a like a ray of sunshine to be greeted 
by Olesa at the front desk when I first arrived.  Later, Tristan greatly helped me navigate my way through the 
process of being plugged into the system so that I was up-to-date.  Tristan was patient and respectful, far more 
than other staff at other WorkSource locations I have visited in past.  Job hunting, as I am sure you are aware, is 
very grueling and impersonal.  People are often treated like inanimate objects during the process of locating a 
place of employment that is a good match.  I'm glad that is not the case at Thurston County WorkSource.  You 
have excellent employees who help make job hunting less callous and antiseptic.” 

Senator Murray and the Year of the Spouse…In its last year, Camo2Commerce will intensify focus on support 
for military spouses.  Helping them gain skills 
and find employment helps stabilize the family 
and is a helpful service to active duty personnel.  
Helping launch the new focus Senator Murray 
visited JBLM and then spoke with spouses about 
their experiences.  She asked what suggestions 
they would make to help them prepare for and 
keep employment. The new WorkSource AJC 
@JBLM will be a place of resource for not just 
spouses, but entire families. Special programming 
is being designed specifically of interest to spouses.  One such event was a Mentoring Event for spouses.  
Darlene Wilczynski, Federal Reserve Vice President, Seattle Regional Executive, sent this note after she 
made her presentation, “The team you have assembled to do this (Camo2Commerce) work are truly inspirational.  
They have a calling and you can see it on how they interact with each other and their clients.  As you know the 
spouses and veterans are incredible as well.  The work you are doing has wide-ranging positive impact both for 
these people and our community.  We are lucky to have your leadership and forward thinking to make it all work.  
Thank you for all that you do.”  

CEO Fambles appointed to Governor’s Policy Reduction Work Group…The Work Group goal is to 
significantly reduce the number of Washington households living in poverty. Using data, research and the voice 
of the people affected, the Work Group will examine: 

• the root causes of poverty in communities across the state,
• how poverty manifests itself in the daily lives of our citizens,
• the effects of inter-generational poverty, and
• how we can aid individuals and families in exiting poverty

TRL Partnership with WorkSource… “An AmeriCorps volunteer at the Shelton WorkSource approached 
library staff about getting some volunteer hours in at the library as a computer helper. He filled out the volunteer
paperwork and was trained and scheduled to work during Saturday open hours. He put up flyers about 
WorkSource jobs and computer classes on jobs board and that one patron found his number that way.  He has 
been working with him on her job search at WorkSource. Another man who was having a difficult time with 
computers first met him at the library and has been going to WorkSource for help on week days now that he sees 
a familiar face and trusts the help he's getting.” 

Attachment #2

66



TYPE THE SIDEBAR CONTENT. A SIDEBAR IS A STANDALONE SUPPLEMENT TO 
THE MAIN DOCUMENT. IT IS OFTEN ALIGN 

ED ON THE LEFT OR RIGHT OF THE PAGE, OR LOCAT 

CEO HIGHLIGHTS 
March 2018 

High Impact Community Grant Awards…PacMtn announced awards for the High Impact Community Grant 
Program.  These grants are for Youth and Young Adult Employment Preparation and Training in Highly Rural 
and Remote Areas. A total of $50,000 will be awarded to 11 projects throughout the region. Collectively, the 
projects are expected to support career connected learning experiences for over 280 youth throughout the region. 
The projects were selected by a review committee from 17 total submissions. The following table indicates the 
projects selected: 

County Organization Award Programming 

Grays Harbor Grays Harbor Youth 
Works 

$5,000 Providing at least 20 youth transportation to 
career exploration days 

The Arc of Grays 
Harbor 

$5,000 Summer internship/employment program for at 
least 6 youth 

Lewis Pinchot Partners $5,000 Extending on-site Discovery Team program by 1 
week for 7 students 

White Pass School 
District 

$5,000 Supporting 21 students in forestry, life science, 
and hospitality/tourism focused Discovery Team 

Mason Hands-On Personal 
Empowerment 

$5,000 Summer job training program for up to 25 at-risk 
youth using farming/agriculture 

Pacific Education 
Institute 

$5,000 Career and Technical Education forestry course 
development for local high schools 

Pacific Big Brothers Big Sisters $5,000 Workplace readiness essential skills training in 
food production for up to 10 youth 

Career 911/ Grays 
Harbor College 

$2,500 Mock conference and career exploration in health 
care industry for up to 100 youth 

Pacific Education 
Institute 

$2,500 Career and Technical Education forestry course 
development for local high schools 

Thurston Jobs For Washington’s 
Graduates 

$5,000 Employment readiness training and job 
placement for at least 60 out-of-school youth 

Thurston Conservation 
District 

$5,000 Supporting South Sound GREEN career 
exploration in life sciences, forestry, and 
agriculture for 75 youth 

77



TYPE THE SIDEBAR CONTENT. A SIDEBAR IS A STANDALONE SUPPLEMENT TO 
THE MAIN DOCUMENT. IT IS OFTEN ALIGN 

ED ON THE LEFT OR RIGHT OF THE PAGE, OR LOCAT 

CEO HIGHLIGHTS 
March 2018 

WA Apprenticeship Coordinators Qtrly Report…Workforce Councils each quarter submit a statement 
of activity to Employment Security (ESD) about the work we are doing to promote apprenticeship as a 
training model.  This past month we received this note back from ESD: “This level of activity should 
really impress our colleagues. Thanks to your good offices and a few others, we are submitting a superb 
report to WSATC this afternoon. We are fortunate to have such good staff and programs in place. Keep 
up the excellent work!” 

New Olympia-based Podcast, “Talent Magnet” now available on iTunes, Google Play or at the 
Thurston Chamber website…the new podcast is brought to you by PacMtn B2B contractor. It helps 
businesses become talent magnets by focusing on recruitment, training, and retention best practices. 
Hosts are Michele Winn and Sytease Geib from the Thurston County Chamber. Check them out! 

PacMtn staff give 168 Community Service Hours in 2017…staff contributed time and energy in a 
variety of communities with a diverse set of projects including those that benefited schools, mentored 
youth, raised funds for worthwhile projects, worked in food banks, served the homeless and helped make 
the holidays more special for those in need.  We are proud of not only the professionalism and 
competency of staff, but of their huge, compassionate hearts! 

Economic Development Board (EDB) for Tacoma-Pierce County recognizes Camo2Commerce… 
and the creation of the WorkSource site at Joint Base Lewis McChord (JBLM) as one of its "Excellent 
10" award recipients during its annual meeting on Thursday at the Greater Tacoma Convention Center. 
The EDB's annual Excellent 10 awards seek to recognize 10 economic development projects that made a 
positive impact on the local economy and were either worked on or completed between January and 
December of the previous year. 

88



PacMtn Workforce Development Council 
WDC Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, November 30, 2017 ▪ 1:30 – 4:00 pm 
WorkSource Thurston – John Loyle Room 

Board Member Attendees:  Duane Evans, Jim Larson, Peter Lahmann, Dru Garson, Derek 
Epps, Jacqueline Earley, Steve Rogers, Michael Cade, David Schaffert, Anne Goranson, Cheryl 
Heywood, Mike Hickman, Paul Vertrees, Jason Reed, Dawn Murphy, Bob Hitt, Winfried Danke 
Attending by Phone: Kairie Pierce, Jim Sayce 
Absent: Bob Guenther, Dr. Jim Minkler 
Staff: Cheryl Fambles, Bridget Lockling, Corinne Daffern, Sean Murphy, Vanessa Wasman 
Guests: Steve Perry, WORC WorkSource System Manager  

I. Welcome & Leadership Reports 
A. The meeting was called to order at 1:31 pm and quorum was established. The agenda 

was reviewed and no changes were made.  
B. Board Chair Report – Duane Evans began his report by welcoming new EFC Member 

Derek Epps of Seattle Shellfish to the Executive Finance Committee. He also reported 
on his attendance at the WWA conference saying that PacMtn was well represented 
and that he and others who attended learned a great deal. He mentioned PacMtn’s 
staff award winners for the Performance Excellence and Achievement that 
acknowledges PacMtn is making the organization a great place to work. He 
concluded his report by reminding members of the December 7 Regional Expo and to 
sign up with Vanessa if they’d like to attend and sit at the PacMtn table. 
C. CEO Report – Cheryl gave her report that included various topics such as the 
Pathways to Prosperity Conference, program successes and PacMtn health care 
costs. Her full CEO report can be found on our website.  

II. Consent Agenda
A. Approval of September 2017 Board Minutes 

Jim Larson motioned to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Anne Goranson. 
Motion carries. 

III. Committee & Task Force Updates
A. One Stop Committee – Cheryl Fambles reported that this committee hasn’t met

recently and that a large amount of staff work related to Infrastructure Funding and 
development of Quality Initiatives for those WorkSource seeking certification.  The 
next meeting will be in January where progress in those areas will be reported upon.  

B. Targeted Populations – David Schaffert said during the last meeting the 
group heard presentations on how to better leverage workforce opportunities around 
the region and amongst Committee Members. The group also plans to revisit the 
Committee Charter in order to update it and to ensure alignment with current 
initiatives and larger goals and objectives. 

C. Industry Sector – Sean Murphy gave a brief presentation describing the history of the 
group and the originating members. He mentioned the stepping down of Chair Lynn 

Attachment #3

99

http://www.pacmtn.org/wp-content/uploads/CEO-Report-November-2017-Final-2.pdf


Longan and that without a chair replacement and concern over meeting overload, the 
Task Force struggled to meet. After discussion with Duane and review by the 
Executive Finance Committee the recommendation is to continue this Taskforce’s 
work with a new format that sets aside a formal committee structure and instead 
creates focused opportunities for business member engagement.  The work could be 
supported by a third party facilitator, and focus on matters related to regional 
workforce planning and data of interest to the broader business community. The core 
group would be made up of economic based organizations on and off the WDC Board 
including Economic Development Agencies, Chambers of Commerce, Ports, College 
Workforce Deans and interested employers. The group would meet at least twice per 
year with a maximum of four times per year. This work is in addition to the specific 
industry employer roundtable discussions that will drive specific project activities. 

IV. Action Items & Strategic Discussions
A. Action: Motion to Approve Adoption of Final PY17 Budget: Bridget Lockling

presented this item.  She updated revenue to include new and revised grants and 
final carry in increasing the Final Budget by over $500,000.  Responding to a 
question she described unrestricted fund account and under what conditions it is 
used for program budgets that do not fully cover costs or for costs that are not 
eligible under the specific grant.  . The Do Pass recommendation from the Executive 
Finance Committee and the Elected Official Consortium was also shared with the 
Board. Jim Larson motioned to approve PY17 Final Budget, seconded by Mike 
Hickman. Motion carries. 

B. Discussion: American Job Centers (AJC) Certification – Corinne Daffern described 
the application process, timelines and the three levels of certification. She said that 
each of the 7 applications had been Provisionally Certified by the Executive Finance 
Committee based upon recommendation by the Review Committee.  Each site is now 
planning its quality initiatives to submit for full certification.   In addition to the 
overall quality enhancements required by WIOA and initiated by the partners the 
approved applications expand resident access to workforce services.  The overall 
increase in that access is from 7 sites to 34 sites, now including the 27 sites of the 
Timberland Regioanl Library system.  

C. Discussion: WorkSource Memorandum of Understanding & Infrastructure Funding 
Agreement (IFA) – Corinne Daffern referenced the staff report and described the 
process and progress of the IFA. It remains uncertain if the IFA will be complete and 
signed by all required partners by the imposed US DOL timeline of December 31st.  

D. Discussion: Review of Year End Celebration and January 2018 Retreat – Members 
are invited to the December meeting where the content will be light and time is set 
aside for networking and casual reflection.  The location was still being determined 
for the January 2018 Retreat. Members were encouraged to RSVP to both meetings 
and to acknowledge if accommodations were needed for the January meeting. 

V. Board Learning Feature Topic – WorkSource Operations Regional 
Collaborative (WORC) and WorkSource Thurston Tour. David Schaffert and 
Anne Goranson, members of the WORC provided some background on the development 

1010



of the WORC and its role as the One-Stop Operator. Steve Perry, WorkSource Operations 
Manager described the history of WorkSource and the changes it has undergone since 
adoption of WIOA.  This report was followed by a tour of the WorkSource Thurston 
building and programs. 

VI. Good of the Order Items & Announcements
Peter Lahmann mentioned Applebee’s restaurants collecting Toys 4 Tots until December
5th. Cheryl Heywood mentioned that the PacMtn and TRL formal One Stop agreement
was recently accepted by her Board of Directors.

Meeting adjourned at 3:54 pm 

Submitted by: Vanessa Wasman, Administrative Assistant 

1111



PacMtn Workforce Development Council 
WDC Meeting Notes 
Thursday, December 14, 2017 ▪ 1:30 – 3:00 pm 
Olympic College Shelton Campus 
937 W. Alpine Way ▪ Shelton, WA 98584

Board Member Attendees:  Duane Evans, Jim Larson, Dru Garson, Steve Rogers, Michael 
Cade, David Schaffert, Anne Goranson, Mike Hickman, Paul Vertrees, Jason Reed 

Consortium Member Attendees: Commissioner Gary Stamper 

Absent: Peter Lahmann, Alyssa Shay, Derek Epps, Jacquelin Earley, Jim Sayce, Kairie Pierce, 
Cheryl Heywood, Dr. Jim Minkler, Bob Guenther, Dawn Murphy, Bob Hitt, Winfried Danke 

Staff: Cheryl Fambles, Bridget Lockling, Corinne Daffern, Sean Murphy, Vanessa Wasman 

Guests: Steve Perry, Employment Security Dept. 

I. Welcome & Leadership Reports 
A. Establish Quorum & Review Today’s Agenda - The meeting was called to order at 

1:40 pm and quorum was not established. There were ten members present and 12 
were needed for quorum. The agenda was reviewed and no changes were made.  

B. Self-Introductions – The group went around the room and introduced themselves 
and what organization they represent. 

C. 2018 WDC Meeting Schedule – The proposed 2018 WDC meeting schedule was 
reviewed and no changes were made. Duane asked the group if anyone had a 
preference on the location of future Board meetings. One member said they prefer 
Thurston County, while others indicated no preference.  

II. Consent Agenda
A. Approval of November 2017 Board Minutes – Since quorum was not established, no

action was taken on the minutes. These minutes will be placed on the March 2018 
WDC meeting agenda for approval. 

III. Board Learning Feature Topics
A. WorkSource Operations Regional Collaborative (WORC) –

WORC is PacMtn’s designated One-Stop Operator, pursuant to the 2014 federal 
legislation—Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.  Members include Anne 
Goranson, ESD Regional Director; David Schaffert, CEO Thurston Chamber; and 
Cheryl Fambles, CEO PacMtn.  The WORC Agreement—Synergy for Success details 
the responsibilities and work. Steve Perry, WorkSource Systems Manager has been 
hired by WORC to carry out the duties, initiate projects and enact local workforce 
system changes.  WIOA stresses the role the Board must have in oversight of the local 
workforce system.  The One-Stop Operator is a neutral broker amongst WorkSource 
partners and is the Board’s key advisor on the local workforce system. The WORC 
and all its work is guided by several key principles: Customer First Focus, 

Attachment #3 cont'd

1212



Integration, Accountability, Universal Access, Continuous Improvement and 
Learning, Partnership, as well as Regionalism and Unified Strategies. Following the 
overview questions were  asked as a way to engage Members including: 
1. What are the greatest opportunities and challenges in this innovative One-Stop

model? 
2. What are the WORC’s priority activities and tasks in 2018?
3. What is most important to the Board in the oversight of the local delivery system?

The group had a brief discussion responding to these questions.  The following
were shared thoughts:

• Figure out how to best reach out to employers; what is the best strategy
for this?

• The goal of the WORC and Steve Perry’s role is to bring agencies together
to help them all move in the same direction.

• Make sure the system is in sync with training and workforce and
economic development councils and that everyone works together.
Consider shared learning sessions on what is the role of the economic
development council.

• How do other agencies interact with the system to achieve a common
goal?

• What more can we do to make this is a cross-disciplinary process?

B. Feedback on the 2017 Regional Economic Expo – Various members of the WDC and 
members of the EDCs said the Expo was a great event and seems to get better with 
each passing year. 

IV. Good of the Order Items & Announcements
A. Jim Larson was acknowledged by the Thurston Chamber as a Boss of the Year.

Meeting adjourned at 3:54 pm 

The meeting adjourned and the group had an informal Year-End Celebration. 

Submitted by: Vanessa Wasman, Administrative Assistant 

1313



www.pacmtn.org  |  (360) 570-704-3568 
WorkSource Thurston  |  1570 Irving Street  Tumwater WA  98512 

To:  

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

MEMORANDUM 

PacMtn WDC Members

Bridget Lockling, Director of Finance & Administrative 

Services March 14, 2018

Finance Department Items 

2nd Quarter Financial Statements. Financial Statements are provided to reflect activity through 

December 31, 2017.  Second quarter expenditures are mostly on track, a few minor deviations have been 

called out in the Notes to Financial Statements. There are no major concerns at this point. We are on 

target to hit our obligation targets on our WIOA formula grants. 

Our Statement of Financial Position reflects a net loss for the year of $185,056. This is due to losses in 

our MyJOB and WorkFirst program. The MyJOB program losses are due to major program and staffing 

changes that occurred over the summer. We made significant earnings in PY16 so this offsets those 

earnings and we are still ahead project to date. The WorkFirst program has had a significant decrease in 

referrals so with fewer participants needing service our ability to generate payment point earnings is 

down. We have enacted program changes to address the losses.   

Recommendation: Motion to approve the 2nd Quarter Financial Statements. 

IRS 990 Taxes for PY16. Our tax return information represents a full disclosure of the financial data 

for PacMtn. This return is sent to the IRS after our State Audit to ensure all information is accurate. The 

attachment provides the core 990 report. The full package with supporting schedules will be posted to 

our website next week. The 990 will be submitted once reviewed and approved by EFC and the Board. 

Final due date to IRS has been extended through May 15, 2018.  

Recommendation: Motion to approve the IRS 990 tax return. 

State Auditor-Annual Financial Audit. The State Auditor’s office finally wrapped up their six week 

review. The audit costs will come in about twice what was budgeted due to their anticipated timing of 

auditing required programs. It was then determined that those programs weren’t subject to audit and so 

they had to start over. Other than that there will be a few will be a few minor exit items for presentation 

of materials and the corrections due to these program changes. They will also make note that we didn’t 

hit our Youth WEX target from two years ago. This was already covered by Employment Security last 

year but the auditors are required to report on it.  The exit conference has not been scheduled yet.   

Attachment #4

1414



Pacific Mountain Workforce Development Council

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Program Year July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018

For month ending December 31, 2017

1)

AREAS OF NOTE:  
a)

b)

c) Contracts for Sector Strategies, Increased Employment and Healthcare initiatives started later than planned.

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

i)

j)

2)

3)

4)

These notes pertain to the Statement of Activities, Statement of Financial Position and Statement Cash Flows attached.  

The Statement of Activities provides a summary of expenses compared to revenue earned for the period, reported on an accrual basis 

(pgs 2-3).  This is then compared with current period budgets and year to date budgets.  More emphasis will be placed on year to date 

spending rather than on a monthly basis because timing may be off slightly from month to month from last year.  The budgeted 

numbers reflect 

Page 5 represents a summary of spending levels by program compared to total budgeted amounts available.  This is further sectioned 

according to source of funds.  

Mailing services are over budget due to having to purchase a new postage machine. The other one was no 

longer supported from the company.

The Statement of Financial Position represents the organizations net assets, comparing current assets and liabilities.  We currently 

have net assets of $840,606. Net assets have decreased by $81,222 since last quarter due to losses in our payment point programs.

Subscription costs are over year to date budget due to timing of annual subscription renewals an d a few new 

software subscriptions being added.

IT Supplies/Tech is over due to acquiring a new software program for our purchase order system.

WIOA Formula contractor spending is behind in the Dislocated Worker Program. Some of this is due to the 

other contracts that are available to spend on this population that expire earlier.

The Incumbent Worker Training program hasn't started, anticipate January 2018

In house program spending is within targets. The C2C grant funding that was set to expire 12/31/17 has been

extended through 3/31/18. New grant is available 1/1/18.

Overall administration office budget is on target through the first quarter.

High Impact Community Grants are set to begin February 2018.

Audit fees are under due to timing, the audit started 2 months later than expected. Audit costs will be double 

what was budgeted.

The Statement of Cash Flows represents the cash received and used during the time period.  This reflects we have sufficient cash on 

hand to handle our daily operating transactions. Our cash balances are higher due to better timing of drawdowns and shorter delays 

on reimbursements from some grants. Purchases of equipment reflects the new cubicle system in the admin office. There is a 2 day 

turnaround time for cash requests to the State for our WIOA Formula fund reimbursements and a 1 day turnaround for cash requests 

made to Department of Labor. Cash requests for the WorkFirst grant take one to two weeks, while some of our smaller grants are only 

reimbursed on a monthly basis. We keep enough unrestricted funds available for use to cushion gaps in reimbursement times.

Prepared 02/23/2018 by Bridget Lockling
1515



Pacific Mountain Workforce Development Council

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
PY17 Budget to Actual Report

For month end December 2017
Current Year 

Actual

Current Year 

Budget Variance Total Budget Balance Remaining % Spent Target %

REVENUES

Grant & Contracts           4,437,628.37            5,743,853.72 1,306,225.35            13,270,103.57            8,832,475.20 33% 43%

Other -   -   -   -   - 0% 0%

Total Revenues           4,437,628.37            5,743,853.72 1,306,225.35            13,270,103.57            8,832,475.20 33% 43%

EXPENSES

Program Services

Direct Participant Services 3,310,677.59         4,246,344.30           935,666.71 8,521,494.56                        5,210,816.97 39% 50%

Business Services & Solutions 330,437.99 376,795.57 46,357.58 600,334.76 269,896.77 55% 63%

Special Impact Projects 129,672.35 182,094.26 52,421.91 310,028.22 180,355.87 42% 59%

Misc Contracts & Projects 15,518.75 20,045.98 4,527.23 40,091.95 24,573.20 39% 50%

Subtotal 3,786,306.68         4,825,280.10           1,038,973.42 9,471,949.49                        5,685,642.81 40% 51%

 Admin Office Operations 775,781.16 848,948.61 73,167.45 1,701,739.64             925,958.48 46% 50%

 Transition Activities 17,783.78 19,625.00 1,841.22 78,500.00 60,716.22 23% 25%

 Integrated Service Activities 41,883.81 50,000.00 8,116.19 100,000.00 58,116.19 42% 50%

 AmeriCorps Activities - - -   - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Subtotal 835,448.75 918,573.61 83,124.86 1,880,239.64                        1,044,790.89 44% 49%

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,621,755.43         5,743,853.72           1,122,098.29 11,352,189.13                     6,730,433.70 41% 51%

Change in Net Assets (184,127.06)           - 184,127.06 1,917,914.44 

Beginning Net Assets 1,025,663 

Plus current Net Assets (184,127) 

Change in special funds (930) 

Ending Unrestricted Net Assets 840,606 

Administrative Services 

Prepared 02/23/2018 by Bridget Lockling 1616



Pacific Mountain Workforce Development Council

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Expense Detail
PY17 Budget to Actual Report

For month end December 2017

Current Period 

Actual

Current Period 

Budget Variance

Current Year 

Actual

Current Year 

Budget Variance Total Budget

Balance 

Remaining % Spent Target %

REVENUES

Grant & Contracts 735,384.41 944,735.86 209,351.45            4,437,628.37            5,743,853.72            1,306,225.35         13,270,103.57           8,832,475.20 33% 43%

Other -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   0% 0%

Total Revenues 735,384.41 944,735.86 209,351.45           4,437,628.37           5,743,853.72           1,306,225.35         13,270,103.57           8,832,475.20 33% 43%

EXPENSES

PROGRAM SERVICES

Direct Participant Services

 Adult Contracted Programs (Career Path Services-CPS) 58,559.92 76,951.08 18,391.16 374,980.00 461,706.50 86,726.50 923,413.00 548,433.00 41% 50%

 Dislocated Worker Contracted Programs (CPS) 60,639.22 95,259.83 34,620.61 331,598.30 571,558.00 239,959.70            1,143,117.00 811,518.70 29% 50%

 Youth Contracted Programs (ResCare) 89,467.00 85,788.83 (3,678.17) 483,774.46 514,733.00 30,958.54            1,029,466.00 545,691.54 47% 50%

 Incumbent Worker Training (CCAC) -   -   -   -   -   -   140,000.00 140,000.00 0% 0%

 Sector Strategies (CPS) -   -   -   -   121,130.78 121,130.78 121,130.78 121,130.78 0% 100%

 Grays Harbor Foundation (CPS) 1,066.00 662.12 (403.89) 2,328.52 3,972.69 1,644.17 7,945.38 5,616.86 29% 50%

 Rapid Response Initiatives (CPS) 6,911.05 12,656.84 5,745.79 18,612.29 75,941.06 57,328.77 126,568.00 107,955.71 15% 60%

 Rapid Response Increased Employment (CPS, ResCare) 33,909.86 33,909.86 33,909.86 33,909.86 237,369.00 237,369.00 0% 14%

 TAP-Healthcare (SPSCC, Centralia College) 14,069.56 21,000.00 6,930.44 20,406.94 126,000.00 105,593.06 252,000.00 231,593.06 8% 50%

 Workforce Central-C2C - 15,500.00 15,500.00 149,508.94 93,000.00 (56,508.94) 186,000.00 36,491.06 80% 50%

  In House Programs

WorkFirst 85,169.14 96,558.12 11,388.98 591,383.53 579,348.70 (12,034.83)            1,158,697.40 567,313.87 51% 50%

PREP 8,406.67 9,119.07 712.40 51,473.41 54,714.41 3,241.00 54,714.41 3,241.00 94% 100%

C2C, Microsoft, Saltchuk 150,042.87 198,708.57 48,665.70 930,750.96            1,192,251.44 261,500.48            2,384,502.87            1,453,751.91 39% 50%

Sector Strategies -   -   -   -   -   -   -   -   #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

JRA-MyJob 43,578.82 54,052.75 10,473.93 257,955.65 324,316.50 66,360.85 648,633.00 390,677.35 40% 50%

YouthWorks-Big Brother Big Sisters 3,961.28 2,362.73 (1,598.55) 26,396.59 14,176.36 (12,220.23) 28,352.72 1,956.13 93% 50%

DVR-Morningside & Arc of Grays Harbor -   -   -   71,508.00 79,585.00 8,077.00 79,585.00 8,077.00 90% 100%

Subtotal Direct Participant Services 521,871.53 702,529.80 180,658.27           3,310,677.59           4,246,344.30 935,666.71           8,521,494.56           5,210,816.97 39% 50%

Business Services

 B2B-(Thurston County Chamber) 28,609.84 37,256.53 8,646.69 192,889.69 223,539.19 30,649.50 447,078.38 254,188.69 43% 50%

 B2B-C2C (TCC) 18,095.24 14,763.51 (3,331.73) 82,682.35 88,581.05 5,898.70 88,581.05 5,898.70 93% 100%

 C2C-(Tacoma Pierce Chamber) 13,965.20 10,779.22 (3,185.98) 54,865.95 64,675.33 9,809.38 64,675.33 9,809.38 85% 100%

Subtotal Business Services 60,670.28 62,799.26 2,128.98 330,437.99 376,795.57 46,357.58 600,334.76 269,896.77 55% 63%

Special Impact Projects

 Advanced Manufacturing (TC EDC, CPS) -   -   -   62,760.71 89,874.59 27,113.88 89,874.59 27,113.88 70% 100%

 Career Pathways 3,272.50 3,694.16 421.66 34,864.50 22,164.95 (12,699.55) 44,329.90 9,465.40 79% 50%

 WBL/Career Connection/AmeriCorps 13,074.75 7,568.64 (5,506.11) 22,047.14 45,411.87 23,364.73 90,823.73 68,776.59 24% 50%

 Rural County-High Impact Community Projects - 7,142.86 7,142.86 - 7,142.86 7,142.86 50,000.00 50,000.00 0% 14%

  Layoff Aversion-Hospitality 5,000.00 2,916.67 (2,083.33) 10,000.00 17,500.00 7,500.00 35,000.00 25,000.00 29% 50%

Subtotal Special Impact Projects 21,347.25 21,322.33 (24.92) 129,672.35 182,094.26 52,421.91 310,028.22 180,355.87 42% 59%

Misc Contracts/Projects

 Outreach & Communications 5,365.00 1,299.33 (4,065.67) 6,518.75 7,795.98 1,277.23 15,591.95 9,073.20 42% 50%

 TAP-Hospitality (WHAEF) - 791.67 791.67 9,000.00 4,750.00 (4,250.00) 9,500.00 500.00 95% 50%

 SeaKing-JRA/MyJOB - 1,250.00 1,250.00 - 7,500.00 7,500.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 0% 50%

Subtotal Misc Contracts/Projects 5,365.00 3,341.00 (2,024.00) 15,518.75 20,045.98 4,527.23 40,091.95 24,573.20 39% 50%

SUBTOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES 609,254.06 789,992.38 180,738.32           3,786,306.68           4,825,280.10           1,038,973.42           9,471,949.49           5,685,642.81 40% 51%

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

Administrative Office Operations

Salaries & Benefits

Salaries 75,322.29 74,627.85 (694.44) 448,713.14             451,592.08             2,878.94 927,738.30             479,025.16 48% 49%

Benefits 26,469.26 32,296.38 5,827.12 170,719.59             195,597.70             24,878.11 391,310.34 220,590.75 44% 50%

Total Salaries & Benefits 101,791.55             106,924.22             5,132.67 619,432.73             647,189.78             27,757.05 1,319,048.64         699,615.91 47% 49%

Travel & Training Expenses

Mileage 514.60 520.83 6.23 2,486.58 3,125.00 638.42 6,250.00 3,763.42 40% 50%

Prepared   02/23/2018 by Bridget Lockling

1717



Travel 462.33 1,041.67 579.34 4,308.02 6,250.00 1,941.98 12,500.00 8,191.98 34% 50%

Conf/Conv/Mtgs/Reg 223.62 337.50 113.88 5,089.49 5,985.00 895.51 8,010.00 2,920.51 64% 75%

Gasoline for PMWDC Vehicles 18.07 66.67 48.60 217.65 400.00 182.35 800.00 582.35 27% 50%

Board Travel 76.52 641.67 565.15 714.75 3,850.00 3,135.25 7,700.00 6,985.25 9% 50%

Board Supplies & Support 1,439.01 1,460.00 20.99 4,098.36 10,740.00 6,641.64 19,500.00 15,401.64 21% 55%

Staff develop/Training 550.00 625.00 75.00 2,561.00 3,750.00 1,189.00 7,500.00 4,939.00 34% 50%

Total Staff Expenses 3,284.15 4,693.33 1,409.18 19,475.85 34,100.00 14,624.15 62,260.00 42,784.15 31% 55%

Professional Services

Accounting & Auditing - 4,666.67 4,666.67 - 9,333.33 9,333.33 14,000.00 14,000.00 0% 67%

Legal Fees - 300.00 300.00 - 1,800.00 1,800.00 3,600.00 3,600.00 0% 50%

Professional Services/Consult 2,690.72 5,383.33 2,692.61 14,840.24 32,300.00 17,459.76 64,600.00 49,759.76 23% 50%

Temp & Interim Contracts - 166.67 166.67 - 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0% 50%

Licenses 1,616.93 2,143.33 526.40 18,442.31 12,860.00 (5,582.31) 25,720.00 7,277.69 72% 50%

Total Professional Services 4,307.65 12,660.00 8,352.35 33,282.55 57,293.33 24,010.78 109,920.00             76,637.45 30% 52%

Facilities

Rent 6,763.03 7,440.08 677.05 40,749.31 44,640.50 3,891.19 89,281.00 48,531.69 46% 50%

Utilities - - -   - -   - - #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Total Facilities 6,763.03 7,440.08 677.05 40,749.31 44,640.50 3,891.19 89,281.00 48,531.69 46% 50%

Supplies & Communications

Supplies 762.15 1,166.67 404.52 3,498.02 7,000.00 3,501.98 14,000.00 10,501.98 25% 50%

Telephone & telecomm 838.40 1,166.67 328.27 3,959.52 7,000.00 3,040.48 14,000.00 10,040.48 28% 50%

Postage & Shipping 132.67 62.50 (70.17) 347.50 375.00 27.50 750.00 402.50 46% 50%

Mailing Services 378.32 33.33 (344.99) 570.55 200.00 (370.55) 400.00 (170.55) 143% 50%

Printing & copying 259.06 416.67 157.61 1,636.99 2,500.00 863.01 5,000.00 3,363.01 33% 50%

Books/Subscriptions/Ref 31.80 104.17 72.37 990.08 625.00 (365.08) 1,250.00 259.92 79% 50%

Total Communications 2,402.40 2,950.00 547.60 11,002.66 17,700.00 6,697.34 35,400.00 24,397.34 31% 50%

Equipment/Maintenance/Software/Rental

IT Supplies/Minor Equipment/Tech Equip 8,510.55 504.17 (8,006.38) 12,113.99 3,025.00 (9,088.99) 6,050.00 (6,063.99) 200% 50%

Equipment Rental & maint 122.44 179.17 56.73 737.74 1,075.00 337.26 2,150.00 1,412.26 34% 50%

Auto Repair & Maintenance 203.36 83.33 (120.03) 1,475.59 500.00 (975.59) 1,000.00 (475.59) 148% 50%

Auto Lease 211.30 280.00 68.70 1,273.14 1,120.00 (153.14) 2,800.00 1,526.86 45% 40%

Total Equipment/Small Tools 9,047.65 1,046.67 (8,000.98) 15,600.46 5,720.00 (9,880.46) 12,000.00 (3,600.46) 130% 48%

Depreciation

Depreciation-Automobile 1,887.08 692.50 (1,194.58) 3,722.26 4,155.00 432.74 8,310.00 4,587.74 45% 50%

Deprec & amort - other 509.95 187.50 (322.45) 1,005.87 1,125.00 119.13 2,250.00 1,244.13 45% 50%

Total Depreciation 2,397.03 880.00 (1,517.03) 4,728.13 5,280.00 551.87 10,560.00 5,831.87 45% 50%

Other

Interest-general/Bank Fees 389.41 375.00 (14.41) 2,345.48 2,250.00 (95.48) 4,500.00 2,154.52 52% 50%

Insurance-Gen Liability 1,259.00 1,395.83 136.83 7,599.21 8,375.00 775.79 16,750.00 9,150.79 45% 50%

Membership Dues - 170.00 170.00 13,131.52 14,150.00 1,018.48 15,770.00 2,638.48 83% 90%

Notifications - 166.67 166.67 1,323.00 1,000.00 (323.00) 2,000.00 677.00 66% 50%

Other Expenses - 83.33 83.33 2,011.71 2,500.00 488.29 3,000.00 988.29 67% 83%

Community Outreach/Ed 3,000.00 2,083.33 (916.67) 8,000.00 12,500.00 4,500.00 25,000.00 17,000.00 32% 50%

Contractor Support/In Kind 40.19 - (40.19) 892.61 - (892.61) - (892.61) #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Transfer to Unrestricted (1,207.00) (1,000.00) 207.00 (3,794.06) (3,750.00) 44.06 (3,750.00) 44.06 101% 100%

Total Other 3,481.60 3,274.17 (207.43) 31,509.47 37,025.00 5,515.53 63,270.00 31,760.53 50% 59%

Subtotal Admin Office Operating Budget 133,475.06             139,868.47             6,393.41 775,781.16             848,948.61             73,167.45 1,701,739.64         925,958.48             46% 50%

Transition & AJC Activities 2,652.81 6,541.67 3,888.86 17,783.78 19,625.00 1,841.22 78,500.00 60,716.22 23% 25%

One Stop Operator 7,888.06 8,333.33 445.27 41,883.81 50,000.00 8,116.19 100,000.00             58,116.19 42% 50%

SUBTOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 144,015.93             154,743.47             10,727.54 835,448.75             918,573.61             83,124.86 1,880,239.64                   1,044,790.89 44% 49%

TOTAL EXPENSES 753,269.99             944,735.86             191,465.87             4,621,755.43         5,743,853.72         1,122,098.29         11,352,189.13       6,730,433.70         84% 100%

Change in Net Assets (17,885.58) - 17,885.58 (184,127.06)           - 184,127.06 1,917,914.44         

Beginning Net Assets 859,980 1,025,663 

Plus current Net Assets (17,886) (184,127) 

Change in special funds (1,487) (930) 

Ending  Unrestricted Net Assets 840,607 840,606 

Prepared   02/23/2018 by Bridget Lockling

1818



Pacific Mountain Workforce Development Council
Grant Balance by Program
PY17 Budget to Actual Report

Through December 31, 2017

YTD Actual Annual Budget Remaining YTD Actual Annual Budget Remaining YTD Actual Annual Budget Remaining

Program:

Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act (WIOA) Grants

  WIOA Youth 574,534.35         1,402,299.26        827,764.91         

  WIOA Adult 579,247.58         1,512,649.40        933,401.82         

  WIOA Dislocated Worker 632,467.53         1,969,140.73        1,336,673.20     

  WIOA Admin Cost Pool 160,066.91         797,822.84            637,755.93         

YouthWorks2 (6/1/16-3/31/18) 32,719.51           34,077.67 1,358.16 

Camo to Commerce (1/1/14-12/31/2018) 1,348,798.91      2,962,109.47        1,613,310.56     

Sector Strategies (9/1/15-6/30/18) - 130,248.15 130,248.15         

Rapid Response Initiatives 58,391.92           378,461.60 320,069.68         

Rapid Response Increased Employment - 231,883.00 231,883.00         

TAP-Hospitality (4/18/17-8/31/17) 10,170.52           10,170.52 - 

TAP-Healthcare (6/28/17-3/31/19) 27,064.55           275,000.00 247,935.45         

WorkFirst (Community Jobs) (ends 6/30/18) 350,529.59           1,369,644.00      1,019,114.41     

Juvenile Rehabilitation-MyJOB (5/1/16-7/15/19) 205,938.16        2,000,000.00       1,794,061.84       

Dept of Voc Rehab-PETS (3/16/16-3/15/18) 72,740.00          96,118.05             23,378.05            

Thurston County Jail Program (ends 12/31/17) 59,865.83          62,410.97             2,545.14 

Dawkins Trust 1,989.60 

Grays Harbor Foundation 273.15 7,945.38 7,672.23 

Microsoft - 20,364.57 20,364.57            

Saltchuk 2,568.26             7,768.36 5,200.10 

Total Program Grant Balance 3,423,461.78   9,703,862.64     6,280,400.86  350,529.59       1,369,644.00   1,019,114.41  341,385.40     2,196,596.93    1,853,221.93   

Department of Labor/WIA/WIOA Funds Department of Commerce Other Funds

Prepared 02/23/2018 by Bridget Lockling
1919



Pacific Mountain Workforce Development Council

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Balance Sheet)

December 31, 2017

Beginning Year 

Balance

Current Period 

Balance

Current Year 

Change

Beginning Period 

Balance

Current Period 

Change

Assets

   Cash & Cash Equivalents 734,048 416,476 (317,572) 410,855 5,621 

   Accounts Receivable 1,158,229 1,126,773 (31,456) 1,209,804 (83,031)

   Due from Related Parties 0 0 0 417 (417)

   Notes Receivable 1,645 (500) (2,145) 0 (500)

   Pre-Paid Expenses 42,886 37,581 (5,305) 37,535 46 

   Investments - CD's 249,487 225,311 (24,176) 225,081 230 

   Long-Term Assets 42,740 36,935 (5,805) 39,836 (2,901)

      Total Assets 2,229,035 1,842,576 (386,459) 1,923,528 (80,952)

Liabilities

   Contracts & Vendors Payable 783,545 635,113 (148,432) 679,247 (44,134)

   Payroll, Taxes, & Benefits Payable 264,945 243,309 (21,636) 249,329 (6,020)

   Paid Leave Payable 129,298 106,979 (22,319) 114,278 (7,299)

   Deferred Revenues 15,714 10,817 (4,897) 12,230 (1,413)

   Other Short-Term Payables 9,870 5,751 (4,119) 8,464 (2,713)

      Total Liabilities 1,203,372 1,001,969 (201,403) 1,063,548 (61,579)

Unrestricted Net Assets 1,025,663 840,607 (185,056) 859,980 (19,373)

 Total Net Assets 1,025,663 840,607 (185,056) 859,980 (19,373)

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 2,229,035 1,842,576 (386,459) 1,923,528 (80,952)

Prepared 2/23/2018 by Bridget Lockling 2020



Pacific Mountain Workforce Development Council

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
December 31, 2017

Current Period Current Year

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

 Receipts from Grants 797,002.49 4,444,187.59 

 Receipts from Contributors/Events 20,750.00 25,390.01 

 Depreciation (Net) 0.00 (6.00)

 Payments to Suppliers (109,732.18) (458,843.76)

 Payments to Employees (277,851.47) (1,693,692.77)

 Payments to Program/Participant Activities (424,548.60) (2,659,565.14)

Total Cash Flows from Operating Activities 5,620.24 (342,530.07)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

 Purchases of Equipment/Assets 0.00 6.00 

 Proceeds from Sale of Current Assets 0.00 0.00 

 Interest and Dividends 229.40 775.91 

 Purchases or Redemptions of Investments (229.40) 24,175.85 

Total Cash Flows from Investing Activities 0.00 24,957.76 

Beginning Cash & Cash Equivalents 410,855.48 734,048.03 

Ending Cash & Cash Equivalents 416,475.72 416,475.72 

Prepared 02/23/2018 by Bridget Lockling 2121



PY17 Quarterly Reports Summary 
Cumulative Data through 12/31/17

 *Participant figures span mutiple PYs

 **Budget figures PY17 Program Services ONLY

 ***YW performance data are Internships and Other Work-Based Learning

Program Type

 Program Planned Actual

% 

Achieved Planned Actual

% 

Achieved Planned Actual

% 

Achieved

Formula 816 728 89% 252 206 82% 3,095,996       1,190,353       38%

 Adult 239 232 97% 72 94 131% 923,413           374,980           41%

 DW 287 223 78% 111 40 36% 1,143,117        331,598           29%

 Youth 290 273 94% 69 72 104% 1,029,466        483,774           47%

Competitive 1789 1691 95% 1326 1365 103% 3,601,047       1,280,661       36%

 C2C* 1550 1572 101% 1176 1257 107% 2,695,626        1,215,245        45%

 Rapid Response Initiatives 20 17 85% 10 3 30% 126,568           18,612 15%

 Rapid Response Increased Emp. 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 237,369           - 0%

 Sector Strategies Partnership 75 97 129% 75 97 129% 121,131           - 0%

 TAP-Healthcare 124 0 0% 0 0 0% 252,000           20,407 8%

 YouthWorks 2*** 20 5 25% 65 8 12% 28,353 26,397 93%

WorkFirst 360 179 50% 360 142 39% 1,158,697       591,384           51%

Other

 JRA MyJOB 300 64 21% N/A N/A N/A 663,633           257,956           39%

 DVR-Internship* 37 31 84% N/A N/A N/A 79,585 71,508 90%

     Thurston County Jail - PREP* 100 103 103% 60 61 102% 54,714 51,473 94%

TOTAL - ALL PROGRAMS 3402 2796 82% 1998 1774 89% 8,653,673       3,443,335       40%

Career Path Services-Contract start date 01/01/18

Contract Mod executed 11/01/17

PY1617 figures; Summer program 

TC Jail is on calendar year

BBBS; YW performance data are Internships and Other 

Work-Based Learning

Internal PY17 planned participant figures used; 42 

placed in unsubsidized employment

Contract signed by SPSCC , Centralia College, & 

Aberdeen High School

Career Path Services-Contract start date 10/01/16

Grant extended - Contract finalized in January; 

Participant figures are PY16 Q4

Career Path Services holds contract

ResCare holds contract

52 OJT's YTD 

Career Path Services holds contract

Participants Served to Date Participants Placed to Date  Total Program Budget to Actual**
Considerations/Comments

2222



Attachment #5

2323



2424



2525



2626



2727



2828



2929



3030



3131



3232



3333



3434



3535



3636



3737



3838



3939



4040



4141



4242



4343



4444



4545



4646



4747



4848



4949



5050



5151



5252



5353



5454



5555



5656



5757



Targeted 
Populations Committee 

Committee Charter 

Targeted Populations Committee
Purpose and Responsibilities 

The purpose of the Targeted Populations Committee is to direct and advise on activities that expand 
access to workforce services for youth and targeted/specialized populations, while demonstrating the 
value of these populations to business, labor and industry.  The committee makes data-informed 
decisions and collaborates with key stakeholders to make recommendations to the PacMtn Workforce 
Development Council on issues related to universal access.  

The Targeted Populations Committee will: 

• Develop recommendations for service providers that focus on education, training and
employment that assist Youth and Targeted/Specialized Populations in developing workplace
readiness essential skills.

• Research and make recommendations on best practices that expand outreach and increase
awareness of services to specialized populations (See WIOA 14 Barrier Populations as outlined
in WIOA Final Rule).

• Identify, connect and consult with employers throughout the region that are willing and able to
participate in expanded workplace preparation and placement opportunities, including career,
post-secondary and apprenticeship pathways.

• Create pathways, agency and resiliency in an effort to instill hope and reduce apathy for all job
seekers.

• Promote value in order to reduce stigmas associated with identified specialized populations.
• Seek stronger alignments and coordination with existing programs that serve the “shared”

workforce customer.
• Coordinate with other related Board Committees and Task Forces for development of

appropriate programs and service models.
• In accordance to the WIOA 14 Barrier Population Priorities, this committee will focus on

Individuals with disabilities, Homeless individuals, Youth and Justice System involved
individuals.

• Make recommendations to the Workforce Development Council to prioritize fund procurement
that addresses gaps in services.

Meeting and Communication Protocols 
• Meeting schedule bi-monthly
• All meetings are conference call accessible
• Communication meeting materials will be distributed via email, one week prior

Attachment #6

5858



MEMORANDUM 

TO: PacMtn Board WDC 

FROM: Cheryl B. Fambles 

SUBJECT: UPDATED Discussion Only: Follow-up from Board Retreat Discussion on 
Enhancing the Relationship between WDC and EDC 

DATE: March 14, 2018 

Discussion 
The Board and Consortium Members met for the Annual Planning Retreat. Notes from that full 
meeting are attached.  Also attached is a list of suggestions for actions and activities that could 
strengthen the relationship and outcomes between the entities. 

Some discussion has already begun with the Business2Business (B2B) contractor on ways to rethink 
the PY18 contract to support and leverage work occurring at the EDC.  The Executive Finance Review 
Committee is asked to review and comment upon the list and to further offer other activities and 
actions to be undertaken. 

PacMtn is fully committed to a partnership with economic development entities and EDCs in 
particular. Such a partnership helps PacMtn achieve its mission to provide regional workforce 
solutions for/with business. 

Next Steps 
The full Board will discuss these items at the March 22 meeting.  Work plan items and activities do-
able in this year’s budget will proceed and others considered for the PY18 budget. 

UPDATE: The Executive Finance Committee met and offered thoughts and clarifications on the list 
of items. They encouraged the conversation with EDC Directors in preparation for the meeting on 
March 22 wherein this would be discussed. 

Attachments:  2018 Retreat Notes 
Staff Suggestions re: Enhanced Relationships with EDC 

Attachment #7

59



PacMtn Workforce Development Council 
Board Retreat Notes 
Thursday, January 25, 2018 ▪ 8:00 – 4:00 pm 
Hotel RL, Olympia 

Board Member Attendees:  Bob Hitt, Jim Larson, Mike Hickman, Paul Vertrees, Jim 
Minkler, David Schaffert, Dawn Murphy, Kairie Pierce, Duane Evans, Michael Cade, Peter 
Lahmann, Bob Guenther, Jacquelin Earley, Steve Rogers, Derek Epps, Dru Garson, Winfried 
Danke, Jason Reed 
Consortium Member Attendees: Lisa Olsen, Randy Ross, Gary Stamper 
Absent: Terri Drexler, John Hutchings, Anne Goranson 
Staff: Cheryl Fambles, Bridget Lockling, Corinne Daffern, Sean Murphy, Stacey Anderson, 
Vanessa Wasman 
Guests/Nominees: Bill Sullivan, Diana Murphy, Jason Robertson, Alysha Boysen 
(AmeriCorps), Nick Oppedahl (AmeriCorps) 

I. Action Items & Strategic Discussions 
A. Board Discussion: Year In Review – The Homework 

• Package #1 Budget and Program Services Performance (Bridget Lockling)
Revenue trajectory from PY11-PY16 was discussed showing the annual 
revenues categorized by the various funds (WIOA Formula, Discretionary, 
Commerce, WorkFirst, DSHS, State and Other.) There was significant 
increase in funding for specialized populations through awards from Dept. 
of Vocational Rehab and Juvenile Rehabilitation Administration to serve 
those incarcerated and those with disabilities. Revenues have increased by 
over 36% since PY11. Direct Participants Expenses was discussed, showing 
Individual Training Accounts (ITA), On the Job Trainings (OJT), Work 
Experience (WEX), Work Based Learning (WBL) and Support Services. 
Over 3,500 participants served, over 1,500 participants placed in to jobs 
from WIOA programs and efforts increased on WEX and WBL.  

The PY16 Final Budget Project Tracking was also reviewed showing the 
various projects, how they are funded, project term dates, participants, 
project summaries, etc.  

Discussion and questions arose about how to better understand the 
challenges of the outcomes and performance report of PacMtn contractors. 
PacMtn can obtain and disseminate this information to Board members. 
Discussion also on federal measure performance and cost per participants 
in PY17 as well as brief discussion on financial risks and the plan for 
alleviating such risks such as use of the reserve fund. There was also 
discussion on project outcomes as well as project outcomes in county by 
county comparisons. 

60



• Package #2 Strategic Plan Update of Activities (Sean Murphy)
Sean reviewed the 4 Year Strategic Plan Goals and Objectives for PY16-
PY20. Goals outlined are to develop regional sector partnerships with target
industry clusters; develop the PacMtn and WorkSource brands focused on
mission, services, and results seen as adding value to the community and
creating new funding sources and partnerships; develop strategic
partnerships and collaborations that expand the PacMtn mission and
facilitate Board Member leadership; and develop programming and
solutions to assist specialized populations in enhancing job skills while
securing and maintaining employment.

• Package #3 Program Year End Reports (Sean Murphy & Corinne Daffern)
The Year End Updates were reviewed by the various programs: MyJob,
Camo2Commerce, Business2Business, WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker
and the Workforce System Year End Report. There was brief discussion on
the service numbers on the WIOA Adult and Dislocated Worker update
regarding the total number of those exiting the program as well as
participants positive placement results.

B. Program Spotlight: Serving Youth – Overview of PacMtn Youth 
Programs, Student Presentation and Board Discussion 

Following review of the Youth Services Info Sheet two individuals who 
participated in youth programs addressed the group.  The attendees found their 
presentation engaging, genuine and helpful in understanding how youth 
programs help youth and young adults.  They were reminded by one of the 
presenters that, “Someone took a chance on me…someone took a chance on 
everyone in this room.” 

Board Discussion: What are the most impactful workforce activities for 
the region’s youth? Board and Consortium Members offered the 
following thoughts, ideas and ask, “How can we better…: 

• Offer Uplift! as a paid or unpaid internship?
• assist youth in transportation to and from internships?
• Help youth better understand employer expectations…the world doesn’t owe you

a job nor a paycheck. You got to go out and hustle it up.
• inform youth on career learning events, apprenticeship events, job fairs, career

fairs, career exploration events.
• Intercept kids sooner with career counselors; electronic interception via social

media in elementary or middle school.
• Create more high school re-engagement programs, GED programs and finding

hard to locate drop-out students in rural areas.
• Locate HS21+ programs in places where youth are found
• Intervene early such as middle school or even elementary school

61



Corinne provided an overview of the Preparation for Re-Entry to Employment 
(PREP) program.  Thurston County contracts with PacMtn to provide these services 
and the WDC is interested in expanding this program to other counties as there are 
resources available to sponsor the work.  Members also offered the following ideas to 
assist those with criminal background get around their employment barriers: 
• “Ban the Box” initiative via group of colleges/tech colleges
• Sealing of youth criminal offense records
• Help employers open screening process for those with felonies, and initiate

conversation about the felony,
• Better prepare applicants for these discussions with workshops around this topic.

Learning and Discussion: Economic and Workforce Development: 

Jason Robertson presented a learning and discussion topic on Economic Development 
Council (EDC) Roles and Functions, and introduced Board discussion questions on how 
EDCs overlap with the workforce system, areas of potential or perceived conflict, 
opportunities for resolution and priority collaborations moving forward. His 
presentation is attached herein. For this discussion, the whole group broke into four 
smaller groups and discussed the following topics: What is the role of EDCs, role of 
PacMtn and their areas of priority collaboration? 

• Team #1:
o More focused sector work
o Seeking bigger funding “big bucks” “more bang for more buck”
o Some of the EDCs may need to know more about what PacMtn does and

what could be done in partnership for each area.
o How can WDCs help advocate a better state funding distribution for

EDCs?
o Jointly produce “White Papers” on topics of mutual interest
o Assist with reducing barriers that enable access to other  federal funding

for major economic development projects i.e. transit money
o Facilitate deeper data analysis to better understand the needs of the

communities
o Acknowledge each plays different roles in regional and local activities

• Team #2:
What are the challenges between EDC and PacMtn? 

o There are lots of responsibilities Are there more opportunities for
contracting?

o Better coordination of B2B services, and more reports to the Board on
B2B work. continue to build B2B relationship with EDC

o More information aimed at what is important to the EDCs
o Determine main/top priorities of PacMtn and EDC and work together on

those
o Cluster studies to show industries to attract based on current workforce
o Keep up with partners and changing technology

62



o Millwright career pathways and work with educators to open these
pathways

o More online meetings
• Team #3:
Build  stronger relationships between EDC, WDC, and Chambers 

o Disseminate information to community participants
o Understand supply chain gaps and how best to respond
o Create more One stop shopping
o Focus on private sector
o Explore regional economic district and lack thereof
o WDC to be more of a regional economic force
o Strategic element from WDC to EDC to take back and implement

information
• Team #4:

o Coordination between PacMtn, EDCs and schools
o Offer more Try – A – Trade success and more programs like this
o Intercept youth sooner
o Implement paid internship programs
o Robust branding/marketing/recruiting for PacMtn to better educate on

what PacMtn does
o Understand the differences between regions within same counties
o Create incubators that help small business start ups
o Work closely with PacMtn and EDCs (“an intimate dance”)

Meeting adjourned at 3:20 pm 

Submitted by: Vanessa Wasman, Administrative Assistant 

63



ENHANCED COLLABORATION 

BETWEEN 

PACMTN WDC AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCILS (EDC) 

Following discussions and suggestions from the 2018 Board Retreat PacMtn staff offer 
the following thoughts about actions and activities that could be undertaken to leverage 
and build stronger connections with business agents, economic development entities 
and economic development councils, in particular. 

1. Help stabilize state EDC funding
Support restoration of ADO/Associate Development Organization funding at State
Department of Commerce. Identify possible grants that enable collaboration with
EDC partners and assist of lead in preparation of materials.

2. Continue to provide EDC with support for data analytics
For the third year purchase a Chumura subscription and offer discounted access to
quality data services for each of the EDC.

3. Strengthen Connections between EDC and Business2Business
Contractor
Request B2B services contractor intensify communication, collaborate on the
development of regional projects/products and establish referral protocols with
economic development entities. The B2B contractor will confirm communication
protocols and a menu of services they will provide on behalf of and/or in partnership
with the EDC. B2B will consider possible financial incentives that can leverage
current EDC efforts to respond to business workforce needs.

4. Support a PacMtn Regional Economic Development District
Align the data requirements for the PacMtn Strategic Plan update with the needs of a
possible 5-county community economic development study (CEDS) and assist as
allowable and appropriate in development of an application for a PacMtn Regional
Economic Development District that could enable the acquisition of new federal
funds for regional economic development activities.

5. In 2018 co-host with EDCs at least 2 regional discussions on relevant
economic data and workforce trends of interest to business entities and economic
development partners.

6. Provide workforce data on mutually serving interests and regional
possibilities that support the work of EDC Boards
Identify materials deemed useful by EDC and collaborate on production. As
determined useful, schedule annual informational presentations for each of the 5
EDC, other economic development entities and related agencies in the region.

7. Review a possible Opportunity Zone designation for the region.
Research and review the State’s current position and the possibility of PacMtn
regional inclusion.

64


	March 2018 WDC Agenda.pdf
	I. Welcome & Leadership Reports (Board Chair)
	 Establish Quorum & Review Today’s Agenda
	 Board Chair Report
	 CEO Report (Attachment #1)
	II. Action: Consent Agenda
	The Consent Agenda is a SINGLE item for Board consideration that encompasses items the Board would typically approve with little comment. Procedural items such as approval of Minutes, or other legal or housekeeping items are appropriate for a Consent ...
	 Quarterly Financial Statements (Attachment #2)
	 PY16 990 Tax Statement (Attachment #3)
	III. Committee & Task Force Updates (Task Force Leads)
	 One Stop Committee – Cheryl Heywood
	 Action: Motion to Approve New Targeted Populations Charter (Attachment #4) – Kairie Pierce
	IV. Action Items & Strategic Discussions (Staff Leads)
	 Review January 2017 Board Retreat Notes (Attachment #5)
	• Discussion of Possible Next Steps
	V. Board Learning Feature Topic  (Michael Cade)
	 Off Planet Research and Lab Tour
	• PacMtn welcomes Dr. Roy Heynderickx, President of St. Martin’s University and Principles at Off Planet Research
	VI. Good of the Order & Announcements
	Upcoming Meetings

	CEO Report Mar 2018 Final
	March 18 Finance Memo
	Financial Statement Package
	Financial Statement 171231.pdf
	Financial Statement  Summary171231

	Full 990 Packet
	Final Charter 2017-18 Targeted Populations Committee
	EDC Collaborations Packet
	EDC COLLABORATIONS MEMO.pdf
	January 2018 WDC Minutes Draft
	Submitted by: Vanessa Wasman, Administrative Assistant

	COLLABORATION OPTIONS3.18 (3)

	March Consortium Agenda.pdf
	I. Convene: Welcome – Commissioner Drexler
	A. Self-Introductions
	B. Establish Quorum
	C. Review of Today’s Agenda
	D. WDC Consortium Chair Comments
	E. WDC Board Chair Report
	F. CEO Report
	II. Consent Agenda- Motion to Approve
	The Consent Agenda is a SINGLE item for Board consideration that encompasses items the Board would typically approve with little comment. Procedural items such as approval of Minutes, or other legal or housekeeping items are appropriate for a Consent ...
	A. Approval of November 2017 Consortium Minutes (Attachment #1)
	III. Action Items
	A. Motion to Approve: Appointment of New Board Member Nominees (Attachment #2)
	• Bill Sullivan, Lewis County – Private Business: Education and Technology Solutions Consultant
	• Diana Murphy, Grays Harbor – Private Business: Staffing
	B. Motion to Approve: Continuation of Board Membership Terms ending June 30, 2021
	• Anne Goranson (Attachment #3)
	• Dawn Murphy (Attachment #4)
	• Paul Vertrees (Attachment #5)
	• Dru Garson (Attachment #6)
	• Jason Reed (Attachment #7)
	IV. Discussion and Informational Reports
	A. Board Seat Discussion
	V. Discussion & Deliberation: Good of the Order & Public Comment
	Upcoming Meetings

	November 2017 WDC Minutes Final.pdf
	I. Welcome & Leadership Reports
	A. The meeting was called to order at 1:31 pm and quorum was established. The agenda was reviewed and no changes were made.
	B. Board Chair Report – Duane Evans began his report by welcoming new EFC Member Derek Epps of Seattle Shellfish to the Executive Finance Committee. He also reported on his attendance at the WWA conference saying that PacMtn was well represented and t...
	C. CEO Report – Cheryl gave her report that included various topics such as the Pathways to Prosperity Conference, program successes and PacMtn health care costs. Her full CEO report can be found on our website.
	II. Consent Agenda
	A. Approval of September 2017 Board Minutes
	Jim Larson motioned to approve the Consent Agenda, seconded by Anne Goranson. Motion carries.
	III. Committee & Task Force Updates
	A. One Stop Committee – Cheryl Fambles reported that this committee hasn’t met recently and that a large amount of staff work related to Infrastructure Funding and development of Quality Initiatives for those WorkSource seeking certification.  The nex...
	B. Youth and Specialized Populations – David Schaffert said during the last meeting the group heard presentations on how to better leverage workforce opportunities around the region and amongst Committee Members. The group also plans to revisit the Co...
	C. Industry Sector – Sean Murphy gave a brief presentation describing the history of the group and the originating members. He mentioned the stepping down of Chair Lynn Longan and that without a chair replacement and concern over meeting overload, the...
	Submitted by: Vanessa Wasman, Administrative Assistant

	December 2017 WDC Minutes.pdf
	I. Welcome & Leadership Reports
	A. Establish Quorum & Review Today’s Agenda - The meeting was called to order at 1:40 pm and quorum was not established. There were ten members present and 12 were needed for quorum. The agenda was reviewed and no changes were made.
	B. Self-Introductions – The group went around the room and introduced themselves and what organization they represent.
	C. 2018 WDC Meeting Schedule – The proposed 2018 WDC meeting schedule was reviewed and no changes were made. Duane asked the group if anyone had a preference on the location of future Board meetings. One member said they prefer Thurston County, while ...
	II. Consent Agenda
	A. Approval of November 2017 Board Minutes – Since quorum was not established, no action was taken on the minutes. These minutes will be placed on the March 2018 WDC meeting agenda for approval.
	III. Board Learning Feature Topics
	A. WorkSource Operations Regional Collaborative (WORC) –
	WORC is PacMtn’s designated One-Stop Operator, pursuant to the 2014 federal legislation—Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.  Members include Anne Goranson, ESD Regional Director; David Schaffert, CEO Thurston Chamber; and Cheryl Fambles, CEO Pac...
	B. Feedback on the 2017 Regional Economic Expo – Various members of the WDC and members of the EDCs said the Expo was a great event and seems to get better with each passing year.
	Submitted by: Vanessa Wasman, Administrative Assistant

	EDC Collaborations Packet.pdf
	EDC COLLABORATIONS MEMO.pdf
	January 2018 WDC Minutes Draft
	Submitted by: Vanessa Wasman, Administrative Assistant

	COLLABORATION OPTIONS3.18 (3)




